RFA # 14-010

Questions and Answers:

1. Question: On Page 15, you indicate a Certification of Drug Free Workplace and
Certification of Tobacco Free Staff are required as part of the grant application. Is there
standard language that the Bureau of Tobacco Free Florida is requiring for these items,
or is each agency allowed to create their own certification language?

Answer: No standard language is available.

2. Question: Is there a cap on the percent of personnel costs that can be charged to the
grant? If so, what is that cap?

Answer: No.

3. Question: Will there be guidance provided with grantee pay ranges? With a rationale
and justification provided for the previous 70% salary cap with a description of how the
70% cap was formulated (a breakdown of grantee salary and fringe to total the 70%)?

Answer: No, there will no guidance provided. Previous salary calculations are not
relevant to this grant.

4. Question: Will there be a funding increase in years two and three of the grant cycle?
Answer: Funding is contingent on annual appropriations from the Legislature.

5. Question: What do we do when the necessary information does not fit on the cover
page without modifying the text size or formatting?

Answer: There is not enough information presented to answer this question. However,
the text size or formatting cannot be modified.

6. Question: Attachment V - Current and Prior Funded Projects Question As a county
health department, we receive funding from many sources including the county, school
board, state and federal sources. Is this form only for funded projects we have applied
for funding from? Are we correct in assuming that we do not have to include automatic
funds received that we don't apply for.

Answer: Yes, this form is only for funded projects applied for. It is not necessary to
include automatic funds.

7. Question: The template instructions state that any alteration to the application
template will result in disqualification of the application however some of the
formatting on the template that was provided to submit application does not match the
“Instructions for Submitting Applications” as outlined on page 16 of the RFA.
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a. Instructions on page 16 of the RFA state that the application pages should be
single-spaced, numbered with 1-inch margins, yet the template provided to
submit application has a 1.3" top margin and some pages that include double
spaced formatting. Do we adjust the top margin to 1-inch and adjust all
formatting to be single spaced as per page 16 of the RFA guidelines?

b. The instructions on page 16 of the RFA state that the font size must be 11 points
and the type must be Arial; however the template provided to submit
application is written in Times New Roman 12 point font. Should applicant
change all fonts to comply with instruction guidelines as outlined on page 16?

Answer: To respond to application sections, the applicant may click inside the
document, press the return key to add additional space, pressing the backspace key the
number of times necessary to move the cursor to the 1 inch left margin. The applicant
can then proceed to type their entries. When each entry is completed, the applicant
may select the text of their entry and modify the font face to Arial and the font size to
11 as well as adjust the line spacing. The applicant is not asked and should not modify
the top or bottom margin of the applicant template.

Question: 1.6 states "if funding is available and grantee performance is acceptable,
grants awarded under this RFA may be renewed by the Department for one three year
period". However, 1.5 states " the BTFF has and estimated amount of $11,014,524.00
for community-based tobacco prevention intervention grants for the 2015-2016 project
period" and 3.4 states "the initial project term shall be for a funding period of three
years beginning July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2018". Is the grant funding from for
the original RFA for FY 2015-2016 project period with a three year renewal after 2016 or
a three year renewal after the initial project term of 2018?

Answer: The grant funding is a three year renewal after the initial three year term.

Question: 4.7 states "applicants shall submit resumes for each staff member who will
work on this project". a) To confirm, does that includes part-time and OPS staff? b)
What if you do not have the staff person hired yet?

Answer: a) Yes. b) A job description of the proposed staff will be required.

Question: It appears that the RFA's will be scored using a 38 question matrix. Is the
guestion matrix that will be used to score the RFA's available?

Answer: No.

Question: To clarify, the statement of need should include only the policy types that the
County will be working on, not a state of need for all policy types. For example, if your
County is required to create smoke-free environments other than housing, then you do
not need to do a statement of need for create smoke-free multi-unit housing, correct?
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Answer: Correct.

Question: Should 5.4, required policy section, be in narrative form? If so, should it be in
narrative form under each section? For example, A. Provide current status of smokeless
tobacco policies in the County. Then the grantee would explain. Then move on to B.
Identify specific smokeless policy....

Answer: Yes.

Question: In 5.4, do we have the option to bullet the SMART objectives, strategies and
activities as needed or do these need to be in narrative form.

Answer: Narrative form may include bullets.

Question: Who do the letters certifying that staff for this grant is tobacco free and drug
free need to come from? The Human Resource manager? Agency head?

Answer: From the individual signing the Cover Page.

Question: To clarify, a SWAT advisor would be considered a sub-contractor for purposes
of this RFA, correct?

Answer: For the purposes of this RFA, a school or community-based SWAT Advisor is
considered a vendor or sub-contractor.

Question: 3.4 states "the initial project term shall be for a funding period of three years
beginning July 1 2015 and ending June 30 2018. 1.6 states "if funding is available and
grantee performance is acceptable, grants awarded under this RFA may be renewed by
the Department for one three-year period". Does that mean that at June 30, 2018, if
grantee performance is acceptable, the grant may be renewed for a three year period
from July 1 2018- June 30 20217

Answer: Yes, contingent on funding from the Legislature.

Question: Can letters of support come from programs within your agency that you plan
on partnering with on a program activity?

Answer: It is preferred that letters of support come from community partners outside
the applicant’s organization.

Question: Are purchases permitted under this RFA for office equipment such as book
binders, laminating machines and button makers?

Answer: Purchases are reviewed and approved on an individual basis based on
relevance to stated outcomes.
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Question: 4.8 and 4.9 Certification of Drug Free Workplace and Tobacco Free Staff How
do we provide the required certification that all staff working on this project are drug
and tobacco free? Is there a particular form or test required?

Answer: No. Also see question 14.

Question: The Application Template instructions state that each applicant should refer
to the County Policy Assignment, contained in Appendix I, to determine their required,
assigned policy types and to complete application questions for only the policy types
assigned. What does the applicant do with the template text pertaining to policy types
that are not assigned? Should that text be deleted? If not deleted then, how would the
applicant indicate those non-assigned sections are not required an answer?

Answer: The template text pertaining to policy types that are not assigned is not
required.

Question: What is the certification of a drug free workplace and the certification of a
tobacco free staff? Is there a template or is this something we create? Are there page
requirements to these items?

Answer: No, there is no template. No, there are no page requirements. The certification
of a drug free workplace and the certification of a tobacco free staff can be a statement
signed and dated by the individual signing the cover page, and must be on the agency
letterhead.

Question: In the application template, are we to insert our responses underneath the
directions for each section? If so, does the whole document need to be changed to Arial
11. | noticed the template has Times New Roman and Calibri font in the document and
the headers.

Answer: Refer to answer # 7.

Question: Do Attachments IlI-VI need to be completely filled out or do we attach the
blank documents?

Answer: Completely filled out.

Question: The application says "Any alteration to the application template will result in
disqualification of the application." Are required to keep the application text that
explains each section (i.e., Applicant’s shall cite source(s) of all data and statistics used
to validate the need..) or do you just need to keep the Section titles (5.2 Statement of
Need)?

Answer: Keep the application text and Section titles.
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Question: Current/Prior Funded Projects a) How many Current Funded Projects do we
list?

Answer: All projects that demonstrate the applicant ability to meet the criteria in
Section 2.4 should be listed.

Question: Current/Prior Funded projects a) Should the Current Funded Projects only
relate to tobacco prevention?

Answer: No.

Question: Previously Funded Projects (2004 - 2014): b) How many Previously Funded
Projects do you list?

Answer: All.

Question: Previously Funded Projects (2004 - 2014): b) Should the Current Funded
Projects only related to tobacco prevention?

Answer: Refer to answer # 26.

Question: Previously Submitted and Not Awarded Projects (2004 4?" 2014): If there are
not any previously submitted and not awarded related to tobacco, do we write for other
programs submitted and not awarded by the Florida Department of Health in Bay
County?

Answer: Yes.

Question: Revoked Grants or Contracts: How far back do we go?
Answer: Five years.

Revoked Grants or Contracts: What if we do not know of any?
Answer: Then the response is “None”.

Question: Section 5.1 Statement of Need is limited to 2 pages, yet the template
instructions take up almost an entire page because of the size of font and indents.

Does this and/or any other page limit include the template instructions or does the page
count begin from the point where the applicant’s text begins and ends?

Answer: The page count begins from the point where the applicant’s text begins and
ends.

Question: The template section instructions are currently written in Times New Roman
12 point font yet the RFA instruction say the application should be in Arial 11 point font.
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When we submit the application is all text, including the instructions, to be submitted in
Arial 11 point as per the RFA instructions?

Answer: Refer to answer # 7.

Question: The template section instructions are double spaced in many areas yet the
RFA instructions say to submit application single spaced. When submitting, do we
format entire application, including the instructions, with single spacing as per the RFA
instructions?

Answer: No. Refer to answer # 7.

Question: The template instructions are often bulleted and indented, yet the RFA
instructions state to use 1 inch margins for text. When the application is submitted
should all text, including the instruction bullets and indented sections, start at the 1 inch
margin?

Answer: No. Refer to answer # 7.

Question: Is the applicant supposed to begin each section text below the instructions
provided in the template or can those instructions be removed or incorporated in
narrative. For instance, under the 5.1 Statement of Need Section there is a paragraph
that outlines what BTFF is seeking that includes seven bullet points and below that
another set of instructions stating what should be include in this section that has
numbered items. Does applicant incorporate the bulleted and numbered instructions
within our narratives, delete this text altogether, or begin typing below this text? If a
bullet point is incorporated in applicant narrative, does the text begin at the 1 inch
margin?

Answer: Begin typing below the text. Yes, the text begins at the 1 inch margin. See
answer #7.

Question: Does the word count for the 5.1 Project Summary section include the
template instructions or just the applicant’s typed text?

Answer: Just the applicant’s typed text.
Question: The RFA asks for four letters of support. Can you submit more than four?
Answer: Applicants should adhere to the instructions in Section 4.5

Question: Regarding Appendix I- Fiscal Year 15-16 Award Amount - what criteria was
used to determine the amount? (population, current # of adult smokers, # of youth
smoking, amount of staff, previous dollars spent)
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Answer: A formula was created using infrastructure, population, the number of tobacco
users, and county size.

Question: Will there be a conference call in regards to clarifying any follow up questions
that were submitted to this site?

Answer: No.
Question: Will this grant be written for a 1 or 3 year term?
Answer: 3 year term.

Question: Will the award amount be divided and disbursed out within a 3 year span or
will this amount be given out each year for the 3 year duration?

Answer: The amount provided in the RFA document is for year one. Future years are
contingent on appropriations from the Legislature.

Question: Regarding the Application Formatting requirements: Application instructions
or headings in the templates may not be modified or removed in order to circumvent
the page limitations imposed. This is unclear, as the entire Attachment is filled with
instructions.

Answer: Refer to answer # 7.

Question: Does this mean that nothing can be deleted from the template? For example:
For the Project Summary, we are not allowed to delete "Applicants shall provide a
concise one-page summary.... brief state officials and others about the proposed
project." Correct? We would instead simply type our Project Summary below those
instructions?

Answer: Correct. Refer to answer # 7.

Question: On Page 7 of the Attachment Il: Application Template, Section 5.5, 2(b)(c)
states to list grant funded projects from 2004 to 2014 and to list all previously submitted
but not awarded grant funded projects. Does this list pertain only to grants applied to
for the tobacco program or all grants applied for by DOH-Broward regardless of which
program it funded? Also, is this the same for previously submitted and not awarded
grant funded projects?

Answer: The list pertains to all grants applied for. Yes, it is the same for previously
submitted and not awarded grant funded projects.

Question: Are the amounts stated on Appendix | - Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Awards
Amounts only for the 2015-2016 year? If so, how will funding be determined for 2016-
20187
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Answer: Funding for 2016 — 2018 will be based on appropriations from the Legislature.

Question: Can applicants request for a higher award than the specified county amount
in Appendix 1?

Answer: No.

Question: Regarding the "Current and Prior Funded Projects" Attachment: Are
applicants required to list ALL current and funded projects, including those projects that
are not specific to policy work or tobacco control? For example: Should a local health
department office list programs such as WIC, or only funded projects that are related to
the current application?

Answer: List all current and funded projects.
Question: Who will be evaluating/scoring the applications?

Answer: An independent provider has been contracted to evaluate/score the
applications.

Question: Can more than 4 letters of support be submitted?
Answer: No.

Question: For counties that have the option of "Smokeless OR Young Adult
Interventions," can they choose to address activities in both areas (rather than just one
of the two)?

Answer: Applicants must choose, based upon statement of need presented in
application, one of the policy areas.

Question: Is there a specific format/style or location you would like to cite our sources
for the statement of need and other sections of the application? Are the citations
counted in the 2 page limit?

Answer: No specific format or style. No, citations do not count them in the 2 page limit.

Question: Are the objectives for section 5.3 a replication of the objectives created for
each policy area?

Answer: Section 5.3 provides direction for the objectives.

Question: Section 5.5 - Management Plan requests "to demonstrate prior work
experience, the successful grantee shall submit for its organization's current and prior
funded projects in attachment V." Do you only want attachment V completed or do you
also want a written description of our current and prior funded projects?



55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

Answer: Only Attachment V completed.

Question: If awarded, how long is the initial contract term?

Answer: Three years.

Question: If an awarded contract is renewed, what is the renewal period?
Answer: Three years.

Question: Are county health departments, as divisions of the Florida Department of
Health, a state agency organized under Section 20.43, Florida Statutes, eligible to apply
to this RFA?

Answer: Yes.

Question: What is the RFA’s scoring criteria and the associated weight factor for each
criteria scored?

Answer: The RFA’s scoring criteria and the associated weight factor for each criteria
scored is available to the RFA’s evaluators, not applicants.

Question: If a county’s policy assignment includes two required policies with an “OR”
between them, can the provider propose SMART objectives for both policies?

Answer: No. Refer to answer # 51.

Question: Will applicants, specifically county health departments, be expected to use
the DOH Media Market exclusively, or may they develop their own media campaigns?

Answer: Applicants will be required to use Tobacco Free Florida Media Campaign
messaging. Applicants will not be allowed to develop their own media campaign.

Question: On pg. 15, it says we are required to submit current and previously funded
projects...

a. Isit necessary to only include information about projects that pertain to
Gadsden County?

b. Are we submitting information only about funding specifically from Bureau of
Tobacco Free Florida?

Answer: a. Yes, b. No.

Question: For the staffing qualification survey, is the applicant agency or the individual
staff applicant the one to fill out the form? If it is not one of these two, who is to fill this
out?
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Answer: Applicant agency.

Question: In Attachment V, is this strictly related to current and previous tobacco
prevention related projects or all current and prior funded projects?

Answer: All current and prior funded projects.

Question: Can the Certification of Tobacco Free Staff include a blanket statement for all
staff members or does there need to be an individual one for each staff member?

Answer: A blanket statement is appropriate.

Question: Does the Certification of Tobacco Free Staff need to be on the agency
letterhead?

Answer: Yes.

Question: The application formatting instructions specify that the font size must be 11
points and the type must be Arial, but the font size and type in the each of the
application attachments do not correspond to these specifications (12 points and Times
New Roman in Attachment 2; 11 points and Calibri in Attachments 1, 3, 4 and 5; and 10
points and Arial in Attachment 6). The formatting instructions also clearly specify that
the instructions or headings in the templates are not to be modified. This is
contradictory, as the templates must be modified in order to use the required font size
and type. So the question is... can applicants modify the font size and type in each of
the attachments to correspond with the application's formatting requirements? Please
answer in regards to both the body of the templates and the header and footer of the
templates.

Answer: Refer to answer # 7.

Question: The above question also applies to the template margins. After looking at the
pre-set margins for Attachment 2, | have noticed that they are not set to the specified 1
inch margins required in the formatting instructions. The top margin for attachment 2 is
set at 1.3"... So do we leave the margins how they were, or set them to the specified 1"
margins (for all templates)?

Answer: Refer to answer # 7.

Question: Are applicants required to type answers to questions directly into the
application templates (attachments)?

Answer: Refer to answer # 7.

Question: Is there a statewide meeting or any other overnight/out of region training
that could happen during Year 1 of the grant? If so, how many trainings and their
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duration? Is there a registration fee? How many staff and/or youth would be required
to attend?

Answer: Possibly a statewide meeting for one to two nights during year one for 2 staff.

Question: Do you need each staff member to sign an attestation statement for the
Certification of Tobacco Free Staff or could an agency policy suffice for this
requirement?

Answer: Refer to answer # 21.
Question: What color font should be used when completing the RFA?
Answer: Black

Question: Are applicants allowed to submit more than four letters of support so long as
the maximum number of application pages is not exceeded?

Answer: No.

Question: If no applicant meets the minimum requirements (score) to provide
Community-Based Tobacco Prevention in a county or counties, what will be the
Bureau’s procedure/protocol for assigning a service provider? How can an entity
become the designated provider should this situation arise?

Answer: Should this situation arise, the Bureau will follow provisions set forth by section
381.84 F.S.

Question: As | understand it, current providers/vendors are required to submit quarterly
performance/progress reports, where can one attain these reports for every county in
Florida? How long will it take from the date of request to receive these documents?

Answer: Make a specific public records request, due to the large volume of information,
there may be charges for staff time and preparation which could be very time
consuming to produce.

Question: Are there subcontracting limitations? Are there consulting limitations? What
is the difference between a subcontractor and consultant? Please clarify.

Answer: Yes, there are subcontracting limits. Yes, there are consulting limits. A
subcontractor may be used to conduct tasks and produce deliverables directly from the
contract. A consultant may be used to provide information/ advice.

Question: Section 408.033, F.S. establishes local health councils as a network of non-
profit agencies that conduct regional health planning and implementation activities.
Each council's district is designated in Section 408.032, F.S. Local health councils
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develop district health plans containing data, analysis and recommendations that relate
to health care status and needs in the community. The recommendations are designed
to improve access to health care, reduce disparities in health status, assist state and
local governments in the development of sound and rational health care policies, and
advocate on behalf of the underserved. Local health councils study the impact of various
initiatives on the health care system, provide assistance to the public and private
sectors, and create and disseminate materials designed to increase their communities
understanding of health care issues. Local health councils are community-based non-
profits designated by Section 408.033 to serve all 67 counties in Florida. As such, local
health councils are in a unique position to provide a continuum of tobacco prevention
services throughout all 67 counties in Florida. Applicants are required to submit
individual applications for each county. If an organization, such as the local health
council’s network, desire to apply to provide services to all 67 counties, must individual
applications be submitted for each county? If so, what is the rationale?

Answer: Yes, individual applications must be submitted for each county. Each county is
unique in its need, its resources, and its potential partners in regard to tobacco
prevention and control.

Question: Given the local health councils statewide service area (as established by
Section 408.033), can one applicant be the sole contracted provider for all 67 counties
and then utilize the network to provide services?

Answer: Yes, however, there must be one application for each county.

Question: All activities of the BTFF are evaluated by an external, independent evaluator
to inform program and policy direction, monitor and document short, intermediate, and
long term population outcomes, ensure accountability, and evaluate the effectiveness
of the program in meeting its goals. Who is the external evaluator? How was the
external evaluator selected? Will there be a bidding process for the external evaluator
service provider?

Answer: There was an invitation to negotiate process that was recently completed, and
from that process, a vendor is being selected.

Question: What is the payment processing method for this contract? (Cost
Reimbursement, Fixed Unit Rate, Fixed Price)

Answer: Fixed price.

Question: Applicants are required to submit Attachment V: Current and Prior Funded
Projects. Does this include all projects (privately funded and state/federal funding) or
does this only apply to related funding?

Answer: All projects.
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Question: Section 5.5 Management Plan has a page limit of 10 pages, however this
section includes Attachment V, Current and Funded Projects which is about 7 pages
filled out, and Attachment VI, Staffing Qualification Survey, will add an additional three
pages for each staff person involved with project. Those two Attachments come to over
10 pages without any other narrative included. How is applicant to address staying
within the 10 page limit for this section when the attachments required are more then
what is allowed? Are the attachments for this section not included in the page limit for
the Management Plan narrative?

Answer: Correct, the attachments for this section are not included in the page limit for
the Management Plan narrative.

Question: Is Attachment VI, Staffing Qualification Survey, required for Administrative or
Supervisory staff who are not directly related to the field work of this project?

Answer: Yes, if they are going to be paid using grant funding.

Question: What is the page limit requirement for Attachment V? If the page limit is not
long enough to include all past/current funding, what should the applicant include?

Answer: Use additional rows as necessary to provide the requested information.

Question: What should be included in the “Contract Information" and “Anticipated
Project Outcome” sections of Attachment V?

Answer: For “Contract Information” — what are the contract obligations? For
“Anticipated Project Outcome” — what are the goals of the project?

Question: Attachment Ill: RFA Annual Budget Template included Direct Expense
Categories of Contractual Services (OPS), Contractual Services (Other Staff Contractor),
Contractual Services (SWAT Advisor) and Contractual Services (SWAT Coordinator). How
should applicants account for staff who are not contractors (for example, staff who are
full-time and salaried)?

Answer: They should be detailed in the “Personnel Information” section.

Question: Where are administrative costs in the budget template and is there a
limitation for administrative costs?

Answer: See “Indirect Expenses” in the Budget narrative.
Question: Are there limitations on any of the budget line items?

Answer: Limitations are listed in the Attachment IV - Budget Narrative.
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Question: If awarded, we anticipate hiring additional staff, how should we account for
this in the staffing qualification survey and resume section?

Answer: By providing a proposed position description for each position.

Question: Will the Tobacco Education and Use Prevention Advisory Council determine a
minimum proposal score required to receive funding?

Answer: Yes.
Question: Will the applicant with the highest proposal score be awarded?

Answer: Yes, as long as the highest proposal score meets the minimum scoring limit as set by
the Tobacco Education and Use Prevention Advisory Council.

Question: Are applicants allowed to add line item categories to the budget template?
Answer: Yes.

Question: On page 9 of the grant application: Does "prior work experience" refer to the
applying organization or to the personnel for the proposed project?

Answer: Applying organization.

Question: Regarding page 18, "How applications are scored:" Question numbers are
listed but don't seem to correspond to the rest of the application. Where can these
guestions be found?

Answer: Refer to answer # 58.



